ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 30, 2011
8:03 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senator Cathy G essel
Representati ve Tuck

COW TTEE CALENDAR
PRESENTATI ON:  CURRENT EARLY CHI LDHOOD PROGRAMS | N ALASKA
- HEARD
SENATE BILL NO. 6
"An Act relating to providing a prekindergarten programw thin a
school district; and providing for an effective date."
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER
BETH SNYDER, Early Chil dhood Teacher Speci ali st
Anchorage School District (ASD)
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke on behalf of ASD s prekindergarten

program

MARK LACKEY, Executive Director

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 30, 2011



CCS Early Learning

Head Start

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a presentation on Head Start's role in
early chil dhood education in Al aska.

ABBE HENSLEY, Executive Director

Best Begi nni ngs

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a presentation on Best Beginning's role
in early childhood education in Al aska.

KRI STEN RAMSTAD, Director

Parents as Teachers (PAT)

Rural Al aska Conmunity Action Program | ncorporated (RurAL CAP)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a presentation on Parents as Teachers'
role in early childhood education in Al aska.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:03: 06 AM

COCHAIR KEVIN MEYER called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Davis, French, Stevens, Co-Chair Thomas and
Co-Chair Meyer. [Due to technical difficulties the neeting was
not recorded from8:03 a.m to 8:06 a.m]

Presentation: Current Early Chil dhood Prograns in Al aska

8. 06:49 AM

CO- CHAI R MEYER announced that the order of business would be to
hear a presentation from various groups involved with current
early chil dhood programs in Al aska.

8:08: 45 AM

BETH SNYDER, Early Childhood Teacher Specialist, Anchorage
School District (ASD), said that districts throughout Al aska
have had a successful history of providing services for children
3 to 5 years of age identified wth early childhood
devel opnent al del ays. She explained that prior to the 2009/2010
school year ASD had sone prekindergarten prograns funded by
federal grants under Title | and mgrant education. Through
Al aska Pilot Pre-K (AP3) grant award process, along with two-
year Title | stimulus funding (ARRA) ASD was able to add five
addi ti onal classroons for a total of 10 prekindergarten
cl assroons. She explained that during the past two years, wth

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 30, 2011



the collaboration of Kids Corp Incorporated (KCl), ASD has,
through a variety a funding sources, been able to provide
services for nore than 176 young children and their famlies
annual ly at 11 school sites.

She noted that all of ASD s preschool prograns serve specific
popul ati ons based on funding sources. The AP3 collaboration
sites require famlies to neet Head Start econom c guidelines
and prioritize children experiencing honel essness or who have
been involved in the Alaska Child Protection Services.

She added that Title | funded progranms reach out to famlies
residing within school district neighborhoods that are nost at-
risk, wth two slots in the Title | classroons reserved for

fam i es experienci ng honel essness.

8:11:56 AM

M5. SNYDER noted that ASD s preschools have 16 children per
cl assroom and the sites provide breakfast and |unch. Schools are
staffed by a full-time certified teacher and a part-tine
teaching assistant. Additionally, AP3 collaboration sites have
an additional specialist who coordinates the conprehensive
services program conponent. She stressed the inportance of
partnering with parents as a key to the overall success of the
pr eki ndergarten program

She noted that Ready Kindergarten is offered three tines
annually at the AP3 sites. This program is sponsored by the
Nat i onal Readi ng Foundati on and focuses on social and enotiona
devel opnent, |anguage, and math skills.

The research based curriculuns currently inplenented at all of
the schools sites were carefully considered. These curricul uns
use the Alaska Early Learning CGuidelines for the prekindergarten
standards. Miltiple assessnment tools are utilized throughout the
school year, wth ongoing data collection used to assist
teachers with planning, nonitor student growh, and for overal
program accountability. ASD is also in the process of devel oping
identifiers for students who have attended these prekindergarten
programs in order to gather |ongitudinal data.

VS. SNYDER explained that the initial data from ASD s
preki ndergarten program is promsing: students are better
prepared for success in kindergarten and are confident |earners.

She concluded her presentation with an exanple of one of the
many positive outcones of Anchorage's AP3 program She expl ai ned

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 30, 2011



that research has docunented both the short and long term
benefits of high-quality prekindergarten for nore than 50 years.
She said that she hopes the commttee will consider not only
continuing the funding for the pilot prekindergarten program
but al so consider increasing the funding allocation.

8:18:49 AM

CO- CHAIR MEYER said SB 6 would give funding for children to have
access to prekindergarten schooling. He asked if ASD would have
the capacity to accommobdate all of these children if the bil
were to pass.

M5. SNYDER replied that ASD has started to have these
di scussions and would need to |look into space issues within the
district. She reiterated that ASD is very excited about the
current results on prekindergarten and that it would benefit the
entire school systemin Anchorage.

SENATOR FRENCH suggested that she think about a "phase in
approach” that would gradually bring in every child in Al aska
who wants to participate. He asked for confirmation that 176
children are currently taking advantage of the prekindergarten
program i n Anchor age.

MB. SNYDER concurred.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how nany children in Anchorage m ght attend
a prekindergarten programif it were nade avail abl e.

M5. SNYDER replied that this question could be better addressed
by Head Start because of its comunity assessnent process. She
noted that through this collaborative process ASD now
understands nore about the denographics of Anchorage, who is
currently being served, and who is not.

SENATOR FRENCH asked for confirmation that the selection
criteria for the AP3 program were simlar to Head Start in
regards to its focus group.

M5. SNYDER replied yes. She noted that ELL (English Language
Learners) students also had priority in selection.

8:22:49 AM

MARK LACKEY, Executive Director, CCS Early Learning, Head Start,
said he is speaking on behalf of all of Head Start in the state.
Wth regard to Senator French's question, Anchorage has an
estimated 874 Head Start eligible children in the nunicipality,

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 30, 2011



of which 630 of these children are currently being served. He
noted that these nunbers are based on age and inconme |evel, it
does not take into account children wth disabilities and
children who are over the incone |imt. He added that roughly
half of the eligible children in the Mitanuska Susitna Valley
are being served.

SENATOR FRENCH asked what the incone limt is for Head Start.

MR. LACKEY said page 2 of the Head Start docunent addresses the
income level [included in the docunent packet] and would be
di scussed during his presentation.

He explained that, in his experience, there tends to be a |ot of
confusion on the differences between the prekindergarten
prograns available. Page 1 of the docunment summarizes what Head
Start does. He explained that the services provided by Head
Start are individualized for each child in an attenpt to nove
them forward. He noted that the other focus of Head Start's work
is famly educati on and enpower nent .

He added that the docunment lists sone of the conprehensive
things that Head Start provides and the programis overall goals.

Page 2 addressed who is eligible to attend Head Start:

e Children who are at least three (3) years of age
by Septenmber 1 of the current year and are not
yet old enough for kindergarten, and

e Wiose famly inconme is at or below the Al aska
poverty incone guidelines are eligible. Head
Start grantees can fill wup to 10 percent (49
percent for progranms operated by Alaska Native
Organi zations) of their total enrollnent wth
children whose famly income exceeds the Al aska
poverty income guidelines.

e Up to 35 percent of a programis total enroll nent
may fall between 100 and 130 percent of poverty
if the program can denonstrate that the needs of
children and famlies under 100 percent are being
met .

e 10 percent of the total enrollnment nust be set
aside for children with diagnosed disabilities.

He continued that page 2 also included individuals who are
categorically eligible:

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 30, 2011



 Famlies who receive Tenporary Assistance for
Needy Fam |lies (TANF)

* Honeless famlies

e Children who have a famly nenber that is on
Suppl emrental Security Inconme (SSI).

e Children in foster care are categorically
eligible for Head Start, regardless of their
foster famly's incomne

He noted that these are all federal requirenents.

8:32: 58 AM
MR. LACKEY said page 3 outlines what nmakes Head Start different
fromother early chil dhood prograns:

* Head Start is a conprehensive program that | ooks
at the entire child (Health, Nutrition, Menta
Health, Dental, etc) and also focuses on the
child s famly.

e CGoverned by parents (Policy Council) and by the
community (Governi ng Body).

* In-kind and non-federal share contributions from
parents and conmunity.

* Head Start has over 45 years of history and
continuous inprovenent behind it. The systens for
delivering services, governance, nonitoring and
reporting are already in place.

» Professional devel opnment qualifications/ mandat es.

Page 4 summarized how Head Start fits into the overall work of
the state in early childhood education. He noted that Head Start
is the largest program and services 3,400 children in 100
communities throughout the state. Head Start also works wth
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED) to create a
consi stent system for data collection and analysis. It partners
with all other prograns in the state that provide early
chi | dhood education or fam |y services.

CO CHAIR THOVAS asked what Head Start uses as a conparison to
determ ne the results of the program

MR. LACKEY replied that there have been national studies on

children who received Head Start services versus those who have
not .

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 30, 2011



CO CHAI R THOVAS referenced page 2 of the docunment. He asked what
a one person famly unit would be [in reference to the first
tabl e].

MR. LACKEY replied that wouldn't apply.

CO- CHAIR THOVAS asked what the program costs statew de per
chi |l d.

MR. LACKEY replied it depends on the comunity but, generally,
it is about $10,000 per child.

SENATOR STEVENS asked how many students in the communities that
he serves are consi dered honel ess.

MR. LACKEY replied that for the programin the Mitanuska Susitna
Valley there were about 22 famlies that were categorized as
hornel ess | ast year.

CO CHAIR MEYER comented that this is a fairly |arge nunber.

8:42: 08 AM

ABBE HENSLEY, Executive Director, Best Beginnings, explained
that Best Beginnings is a novenent that began in 2006 to carry
out the recomendations made by the Ready to Read, Ready to
Learn Task Force. She noted that the novenment works wth many

partners at the state and local level in order to support
parents as a child s first teacher, pronote access to high-
quality and affordable early-learning prograns, i ncrease

awareness of the inportance of early learning, and make sure
that sufficient funds are commtted from public and private
sour ces.

Best Begi nnings |everages state funding with contributions from
f oundat i ons, busi nesses, comunity or gani zati ons, and
i ndi vi dual s. She stressed that young children are best served by
a statewide early childhood system that enpowers fanmlies and
engages communities. She explained that Best Begi nnings pursues
this goal by pronoting early learning activities, public
education and awareness, early literacy, and comunity
part ner shi ps.

She gave sone exanples of Best Beginnings efforts including its
decision to take up statewi de sponsorship of Dolly Parton's
| magi nation Library. 1In Alaska, Imagination Library is run
differently and is community based and volunteer driven. She
noted that an evaluation of Imagination Library in Al aska showed

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 30, 2011



that children enrolled for |onger than one year had nore books
in their honme, were read to nore, and were nore enthusiastic
about readi ng.

8:47:23 AM

M5. HENSLEY explained that a nore conprehensive effort to
i nprove early-learning opportunities for young children is being
taken on by a network of 11 early childhood partnerships across
the state. She explained that, with the help of Best Begi nnings,
these partnerships are working to inprove coordination of
progranms and services and pronote a better use of resources. She
gave an exanple of what is happening in one particular conmunity
wi th a Best Begi nnings partnership.

She noted that Best Beginnings would Iike to see a conprehensive
birth to five early childhood system that includes many options
for famlies and their children. She recommended a diverse
system for prekindergarten, in relation to SB 6 and the space
needs. She explained that, for exanple, the prekindergarten
program could be delivered through <childcare centers. Best
Beginnings would like to continue this conversation over the
interim in order to encourage a greater understanding of the
i ssues surroundi ng early-Iearning.

She added that Mark Lackey and Beth Snyder are both participants
in Best Beginnings early childhood partnerships in their
conmuni ti es.

CO CHAI R MEYER said part of the purpose of today's presentations
is to share with the commttee the various organizations that
are involved wth prekindergarten prograns and are worKking
t oget her.

8:55:40 AM

KRI STEN RAMSTAD, Director, Parents as Teachers (PAT), Rural
Al aska Comunity Action Program Incorporated (RurAL CAP), said
PAT is based on the philosophy that parents are a child' s first
and nost influential teachers.

She noted that page 2 of the PAT Power Point lists the goals of
the program [included in docunent packet]:

* Increase parent knowl edge of early childhood
devel opnent and i nprove parenting practices

* Provide early detection of devel opnental delays
and health issues

* Prevent child abuse and negl ect

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 30, 2011



e |Increase children's school readiness and school
success

She explained that the PAT program consists of four conponents
and IS conpl etely vol untary. These conponent s i ncl ude
personalized neetings wth famlies, group soci alizati ons,
annual devel opnental, vision, and hearing screening, and access
to resource referrals.

She continued with page 3 of the presentation, which |ists what
PAT does:

e Certified parent educators provide research-based
information and utilize evidence-based practices
by partnering, facilitating and reflecting wth
famlies

» Parent educators use the Parents as Teachers
Foundational Curriculum in culturally sensitive
ways to deliver services that enphasi ze:

- Parent-Child Interaction
- Devel opnent - Cent ered Parenti ng
- Fam |y Well-Being

She explained that during the parent-child interaction portion
of a honme visit an activity is presented that focuses on parent-
child interactions, pronpt parent engagenent, and encouraging

child devel opnent . Wth regard to devel opnent - cent er ed
parenting, educators explain the |ink between a child' s stage of
devel opnent, the <child' s behavior, and appropriate parent

decisions. Finally, parent educators focus on famly well-being
by working to strengthen protective factors in each famly.

Page 5 of the presentation |listed who PAT serves:

e Families with children birth to five

e Special populations: teen parents, children with
speci al needs, culturally and [linguistically
diverse famlies, mlitary famlies, and famlies
referred by OCS [Ofice of Children's Services]

* Rural and urban communities
e Families in intervention school districts

She explained that 71 percent of PAT is delivered by non-profit
agenci es and 29 percent is delivered by school districts.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -9- March 30, 2011



Page 7 |isted the denographics of PAT from the 2009-2010 program
year. She noted that around the state PAT was in 39 comunities
and served 781 famlies and 967 children. The page also listed
the ethnicities of the children served.

9: 00: 03 AM
M5. RAMSTAD continued with her presentation. Page 8 listed how
PAT is different from other prograns:

e Parents as teachers
e Connects parents to other parents
* Incorporates brain devel opnent information

* Resources to extend learning opportunities for
children in the hone

e State Advisory Board
* Certified parents educators
* Mbdest investnent for high returns/outcones

She explained that the last bullet point is one of the nost
important differences. PAT has a very low cost to deliver PAT
services, with an average cost between $3,200 and $4,000 per
famly.

Page 10 included some PAT results from around the state. She
shared sonme of the successes that have been unique to RurAL CAP
in the past year

Page 11 explained how PAT fits in with the other early chil dhood
programs in the state. She noted that PAT is primarily a birth-
t hree pr ogr am whi ch transitions into Head Start or
private/public preschool, and then to school districts. She
explained that PAT also wuses the Alaska Early Learning
Quidelines to guide its work.

9:03:48 AM

SENATOR FRENCH comented that PAT is by far the nobst cost-
effective program that the conmttee has heard from He noted
that while the program does not offer all-day instruction, it
does train parents.

CO- CHAIR MEYER said that there are other organizations that he
would like to have testify or give an overview. He asked these
organi zations, including Child Care Resources and Famlies
First, to send the conmittee information. He noted that the
committee will take public testinony on SB 6 on Friday. He said
that, additionally, the conmttee would |ike to receive an

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- March 30, 2011



update on the AP3 program He enphasi zed that prekindergarten is
a big issue and topic.

9:07:36 AM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Co-Chair Meyer adjourned the neeting at 9:07 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- March 30, 2011



